
 
 

AGENDA 
DAYTON CITY COUNCIL 

WORK SESSION 
 
DATE: MONDAY, MARCH 15, 2021  
PLACE: VIRTUAL ZOOM MEETING - HOUSE BILL 4212 
TIME: 6:30 PM  
 
Please click the link to join the webinar:  https://zoom.us/j/98522633859  or telephone 1 253 215 8782 
Meeting Passcode:  688214  Webinar ID:  985 2263 3859 

Dayton – Rich in History....Envisioning Our Future 
 

 
ITEM     DESCRIPTION                                                                                                              PAGE # 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

      
B. ROLL CALL   

 
C.  APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 

  
 

 
 
  

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
 1. Regular Session Meeting Minutes of March 1, 2021     1  
 
E. WORK SESSION ITEMS 
 1. City Newsletter          5 
 2. Pedestrian System Improvements for Funding Eligibility    7 
 3. Renew/Replace Three Year Public Safety Levy Discussion    11 
 
F. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS/CONCERNS 
 
G. INFORMATION REPORTS 

1. City Manager’s Report         29 
 
H. ADJOURN            
       
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Posted:  03/11/21  
Patty Ringnalda, City Recorder  
 

 
Persons with hearing, visual or manual impairments who wish to participate in the meeting should contact 
the City of Dayton AT LEAST 32 WORKING HOURS (4 DAYS) prior to the meeting date in order that 
appropriate communication assistance can be arranged. The City Hall Annex is accessible to the disabled.  
Please let us know if you need any special accommodations to attend this meeting. 
 

NEXT MEETING DATE  
City Council Regular Session Monday, April 5, 2021 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

This time is reserved for questions or comments from persons in the audience on any topic. 

https://zoom.us/j/98522633859




MINUTES 
DAYTON CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR SESSION  
March 1, 2021 

 
 PRESENT: Mayor Elizabeth Wytoski  ABSENT: Council President Rosalba Sandoval-Perez 
   Councilor Annette Frank     
   Councilor Daniel Holbrook    

Councilor Kitty Mackin 
   Councilor Trini Marquez arrived at 6:38 pm 
   Councilor Darrick Price  
             

STAFF: Rochelle Roaden, City Manager 
  Patty Ringnalda, City Recorder 
  Steve Sagmiller, Public Works Director  
  Deputy Richard Broyles 
        
A. CALL TO ORDER  
 

Mayor Wytoski called the meeting to order at 6:34 pm. 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Wytoski noted there was a quorum with Councilors Frank, Holbrook, Mackin, Price and 
Sandoval-Perez attending the meeting virtually via Zoom. Mayor Wytoski noted the absence of 
Councilors Marquez and Sandoval-Perez.   

 
C. APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 
   

Eve Silverman called into the zoom meeting but was unable to connect her phone so that council could 
hear her. 
 

D.   CONSENT AGENDA 
  

a. Regular Session Meeting Minutes of February 1, 2021. 
 

KITTY MACKIN MOVED TO APPROVE THE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR SESSION MEETING MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 1, 
2021 AS AMENDED.  SECONDED BY DANIEL HOLBROOK.  
Motion carried with Frank, Holbrook, Mackin, Price and Wytoski voting 

aye. Marquez and Sandoval-Perez absent. 

 
E. ACTION ITEMS 
 

1.  OLCC Liquor License Renewal Discussion 
   

Rochelle Roaden, City Manager, reviewed the OLCC liquor license renewal process and the 
Yamhill County Sheriff’s Office criminal stats with the Council. Deputy Richard Broyles 
was in attendance to review and help the Council interpret the Sheriff’s stats. Deputy 
Broyles advised that the stats are compiled based on information provided by the arresting 
Deputy and depending on how the stop is written up, the location variable can take many 
forms.  For example, corner of 4th & Ferry could be the same as 401 Ferry Street.  
 
 

1



 
Rochelle Roaden reviewed several complaints made against the By-Pass Bar & Grill, noting 
that complaints increased on the occasions of their outdoor concerts.  Rochelle Roaden and 
Deputy Broyles advised that several attempts to speak with the owner of the establishment 
resulted in no change. Deputy Broyles pointed out that the Sheriff’s stats show only one 
DUII related to the By-Pass Bar and Grill in 2020, however he stated that he has case 
information showing three DUII citations were issued directly related to the By-pass in 
2020. Discussion continued. 
 

DARRICK PRICE MOVED TO TAKE NO ACTION ON ALL 
LIQUIOR LICENSE APPLICATIONS WITH THE EXCEPTION 
OF THE BY-PASS BAR AND GRILL, WHEREIN THE COUNCIL 
IS REQUESTING A 45 DAY EXTENTION IN ORDER TO 
CONDUCT AN INVESTIGATION. SECONDED BY COUNCILOR 
TRINI MARQUEZ. Motion carried with Frank, Holbrook, Mackin, 

Marquez, Price and Wytoski.  Sandoval-Perez absent.   

 
APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS. After several attempts to connect to Eve Silverman 
by phone, Mayor Wytoski called Ms. Silverman and she spoke to the Council via speaker.   
 
Ms. Silverman of the Yamhill County Cultural Coalition, Cultural Award Committee presented their 
Arts Humanities Heritage Award program.   

 
2. Approval of City Council Strategic Goals for 2021/2022 

 
Rochelle Roaden reviewed the changes that were made to the Council Strategic Goals from the 
January 19, 2021 Council Meeting.  The Emergency Operations Response Team partnership with 
the Dayton School District was added to Goal E.  The Dayton Village RFP was discussed in 
length with the Council in agreement that the RFP be completed, with the project to be revisited 
at the June Council meeting.  

 
DANIEL HOLBROOK MOVED TO APPROVE THE CITY 
COUNCIL STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2021/2022 AS AMENDED.  SECONDED BY KITTY MACKIN.  
Motion carried with Frank, Holbrook, Mackin, Marquez, Price, and 

Wytoski voting aye.  Sandoval-Perez absent. 

 
3. Approval of Resolution 20/21-09 City Council Rules Amendment #7 

 
Rochelle Roaden reviewed the Council rules from the last meeting. Mayor Wytoski asked that 
the language in section 3.6 Telephonic/Electronic Meeting, be changed to say “except during a 
declared emergency” instead of during a health emergency.  Council was in agreement.  
 

DANIEL HOLBROOK MOVED TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 
20/21-09 A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AMENDMENT #7 TO 
RESOLUTION 04/05-31, A RESOLUTION ADOPTING CITY 
COUNCIL RULES AS AMENDED.  SECONDED BY TRINI 
MARQUEZ.  Motion carried with Frank, Holbrook, Mackin, Marquez, 

Price and Wytoski voting aye. Sandoval-Perez absent. 
  

2



4. Approval of Resolution 20/21-10 Equipment Surplus 
 
Rochelle Roaden reviewed the proposed surplus list, stating that IT equipment disposal will be 
handled by Alexonet.  
 

KITTY MACKIN MOVED TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 20/21-10 
A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PROPERTY AS 
SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING ITS TRANSFER, SALE OR 
OTHER DISPOSITION.  SECONDED BY TRINI MARQUEZ.  
Motion carried with Frank, Holbrook, Mackin, Marquez, Price and 

Wytoski voting aye.  Sandoval-Perez absent. 
 

F. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS AND CONCERNS 
 
Daniel Holbrook, thanked staff for the removal of the moss on City Hall, Annex and Community Center 
buildings.   
 

G. INFORMATION REPORTS 
  

 1.  City Manager’s Report 
 
Steve Sagmiller, Public Works Director advised that the Joint well field is producing at a higher rate 
and Lafayette has been using their intertie more.  There were some issues with the ice storm and the 
temporary closure of McDougall wells. January well field usage was down from last year.   
 
Safe Routes to School - 9th to Flower Project, proposals to perform the right-of-way work have been 
mailed out.  In order to complete the project, there are five properties along the Ferry Street that will 
require easements.    
 
RFP for engineering services for the utility bridge mid-span replacement project have been posted 
and are due back by March 12th.   
 
Rochelle Roaden, updated the Council on the completed single audit for the main pump station, the 
progress of the City’s updated website, the Recology voucher program and the continued closure of 
City Hall and Library due to the COVID-19 pandemic.   
 
The quarterly budget vs actual budget report was reviewed with the Council.   
 

H.  ADJOURN 
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:05 pm.  
 

Respectfully submitted:    APPROVED BY COUNCIL on March 15, 2021. 
        

       □ As Written □ As Amended 
By:  Patty Ringnalda 
       City Recorder  
        _____________________________   
        Elizabeth Wytoski, Mayor 

3



4



To:   Honorable Mayor and City Councilors 
 
From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager 
 
Issue:   City Newsletter   
 
Date:  March 15, 2021 
  
History/Background 

 
Currently, Goal F (Enhance communications to actively engage the community) of the Council’s 
Strategic Goals includes “Develop a community newsletter”.  Attached to your packet is a 
printed prototype of the Ferry Street News – City of Dayton, Oregon, Newsletter.   
 
Staff has put together a 16-page quarterly newsletter for the Council to review and provide input.  
The text within each section is just filler to show how it would look.  The actual articles will be 
developed and submitted by contributors for the first edition – June 2021.  I propose that the 
newsletter is distributed in June, September, December and March.   This will allow city event 
information to go out before the summer, before the fall, before Christmas and before spring.   
 
The following sections are included: 

 Town Talk with the Mayor 
 Dayton Community Development Association Update 
 Historical Highlight 
 Dayton Fire – Chief Putman Update  
 City Manager Update 
 Dayton School Superintendent Update 
 Public Works Update 
 A Word from our Library Director 
 Columna de noticias en espanol 
 Birthdays, Milestones & What Nots 
 Yamhill County Sheriff’s Office  
 Two pages for other topics that Council would like  
 Recipe Roundup 
 Event Information 

 
All the contributors which are not staff have been contacted and are on board with providing 
information for our upcoming printings.   
 
We discovered that the largest cost for a newsletter is the color printing.  So, our prototype 
shows the first two pages and the last two pages in color and the remaining pages in black and 
white.   This cuts down our costs by over $1000 per edition.    We are figuring each edition will 
cost approx. $1000 for printing and distribution.    I spoke with Aumsville and instead of paying 
postage (which would run over $1000 each time) they hire a local young adult with a driver’s 
license to assemble the newsletters in plastic bags and deliver for a fixed cost which is much 
more economical.  

5



6



To:   Honorable Mayor and City Councilors 

 

From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager 

 

Issue:   Pedestrian System Improvements for Funding Eligibility  

 

Date:  March 15, 2021 

  

 

History/Background 

 

Strategic Goal A includes the following:  Adopt a prioritized list of pedestrian system 

improvements for funding eligibility.  

 

Included in your packet is a map showing all the current sidewalks in Dayton. Sidewalks are 

designated by the thick black line.   

 

It is important to note that prior to the city adopting Public Works Design Standards, sidewalks 

were not required when new homes were developed as it is now.  This explains why there may 

be partial sidewalk on a street in front of only one lot.   

 

To accommodate Dayton students walking to and from school, staff proposes the following 

prioritization if funding becomes available: 

 

1) 5th Street from Ferry to Church to Ash  

2) Church Street from 5th to 6th 

3) 6th Street from Ferry to Church to Ash  

4) 7th Street from Ferry to Church to Ash 

5) Church Street from 6th to 7th 

6) 8th Street from Ferry to Ash  

7) Church Street from 7th to 8th  

8) 9th Street from Ferry to Church to Ash 

9) Church Street from 9th to Flower  

10) Flower Street from Ferry to Church (with the 9th to Flower sidewalk being completed in 

the summer of 2021, Council may want to move this up in priority.)  

 

This will come back to Council at the April regular session for adoption.  And, when grants or 

funding is made available, the City will then be able to apply for these projects.   

 

7



8



9



10



To:   Honorable Mayor and City Councilors 
 
From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager 
 
Issue:   Renew/Replace Three Year Public Safety Levy Discussion  
 
Date:  March 15, 2021 
  
 

History/Background 

 
Strategic Goal E includes the following:  Evaluate options for renewing or replacing existing 

three-year public safety levy.   

 

Currently the City funds our public safety services through a local option tax which assesses 
$1.85 per $1,000 on all real property in Dayton.  (A home valued at $200,000 pays $370 
annually.)     The services include a contract for one Yamhill County Sheriff’s Office Deputy, 
their vehicle, training and certification and equipment, .50 FTE code enforcement staff, .29 FTE 
Court Services/Admin, and 911 dispatch operations administered by Yamhill County.  Our 
current levy expires on June 30, 2022.   
 
The current levy has been approved by Dayton voters in 2007, 2010, 2012, 2015 and 2018.  The 
tax levy amount has not changed since 2007.  In 2015, the Council discussed increasing the levy 
by .15 - .25 per $1,000 but chose not to increase it at that time. 
 
It should also be noted that the levy has been voted down in the past.   Dayton has contracted 
with Yamhill County Sheriff’s Office as early as 1987.  In 2001, the levy did not pass which 
resulted in no police services in Dayton for the fiscal year 2001-2002.  (For your reference, I 
have attached the letter that was sent out to Dayton residents in 2002 when the levy was then 
reinstated.)  
 
Discussion 

 

Council will need to pass a resolution prior to initiating a new tax levy to the Dayton voters.  
Upcoming special elections will be held in September, November of 2021 and May of 2022.   It 
is important to note that in the September special election this levy may be the only item on the 
ballot and would require 50% of the electorate to vote and approve the levy.  Compared to the 
November and May elections which would not require the 50% rule. (If we have 1000 registered 
voters, the levy would need at least 500 votes to pass.  If only 600 vote, 400 in favor and 200 
against, the levy would not pass.)  Additionally, the city would have to fund the cost of the 
election on its own in September unless another jurisdiction in Yamhill County were also going 
out.  Then the costs would be shared.  More jurisdictions usually participate in the November and 
May elections.  
 
Options to consider:  
 

11



1) Renew the current levy at the same rate funding our current services for a 3-year period 
or 5-year period.   

2) Replace the current levy at a higher rate for a 3-year or 5-year period to bring revenue 
and expenditures more in line with current actuals.  

3) Replace the levy at an increased rate to fund current services plus an additional deputy 
for a 3-year period or for a 5-year period.  

 
 
While Dayton contracts for one Deputy, Lafayette, Amity and Willamina all currently contract 
for 2 deputies.  Amity (pop. 1,705) funds its contract through a public safety fee of $10/mth 
which is assessed via their utility bills.  Willamina (pop. 2,270)  funds 55% of their contract with 
an incremental public safety fee.  I have not heard back from Lafayette (pop 4,155) but hopefully 
I will have their revenue source information for our meeting on Monday.   
 
Here is the schedule and coverage associated with two deputies.   
 

Amity, Lafayette, Willamina 
Dayshift Deputy 7A-5P Monday through Thursday 
Swing shift Deputy (A) Schedule 2P-12A Tuesday through Friday 
(B) Schedule 2P-12A Wednesday through Saturday 
 

 
Financial Analysis:  

 
Included in your packet are two financial reports.  The first is a report showing revenue and 
expenditures for the Local Option Tax Fund for the prior two years and the current year. As you 
can see, for the current year, we are running at a loss as we did in 2018-2019.  Legal Fees for 
code enforcement issues were much higher than usual for the last two years. In 19-20, we 
transferred $50k from the General Fund to offset some of the legal fees.    In years where we 
have higher expenses than revenue, the difference has been made up with the beginning fund 
balance (BFB).  But, this depletes the balance in the fund and eventually this reserve will run out.  
 
The second report title “Scenarios” provides scenarios based on our estimated Taxable Property 
Value for 2020-2021 which the county has set at $140,075,192.   It starts with our current rate of 
$1.85/$1000 and goes up to $3.60/$1000 which is what would be needed to fund 2 full deputies.  
I wanted to provide several options and so I also talked with Steve Sugg, Superintendent for the 
Dayton School District to see if they might have a need/interest in bringing back a Student 
Resource Officer (SRO) which would mean the School District could fund some of the second 
deputy’s expense.  Steve brought it up at their School Board meeting this week and some interest 
was expressed.   He is having another meeting this week with his administrative staff to discuss.    
So, this option is a hypothetical at this point.    Steve said they might be interested in .25 or .50 
FTE so I have added those expenses on the Scenarios report.   
 
With the next year’s contract going up to $181,000 for one deputy and the additional expenses in 
this fund totaling $337,031, the current $1.85/$1000 will result in a shortfall of $63k.  So, in 
order to completely fund next year, the tax levy would need to be raised at least .45 if not .50.   

12



Not increasing the rate for the last 14 years has put us behind the ball a bit.  Our fund balance 
most likely could only support another 2-3 years at the current rate of $1.85. 
 
Striking a balance between tax percentage, coverage, and length of levy (3 or 5 years) is going to 
be the key.  
 
 
 
 

13



14



20
18

-2
01

9
20

19
-2

02
0

20
20

-2
02

1
Ac

tu
al

s
Ac

tu
al

s
Fo

re
ca

st

L
o
c
a
l 
O

p
ti
o
n
 L

e
v
y
 (

$
1
.8

5
/$

1
0
0
0
)

2
2
2
,8

7
1

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
3
6
,3

3
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
2
8
,5

4
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
ri
o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

T
a
x
e
s

8
,2

7
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,4

5
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,4

5
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

In
te

re
s
t

4
,3

2
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,7

4
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
0
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
it
a
ti
o
n
s
 /
B

a
il

1
3
,3

8
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
,5

9
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
,4

6
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
ra

ff
ic

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
F

e
e
s

3
,3

0
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,2

6
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
4
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

M
is

c
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e

3
7
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
5
2
,5

3
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
0
6
,4

6
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
3
7
,5

9
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

20
18

-2
01

9
20

19
-2

02
0

20
20

-2
02

1
Ac

tu
al

s
Ac

tu
al

s
Fo

re
ca

st

S
h
e
ri
ff

's
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

1
3
1
,3

6
1

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
4
9
,9

9
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6
2
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
1
1
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

3
0
,3

9
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
4
,6

2
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
2
,9

6
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
e
g
a
l 
F

e
e
s

7
2
,8

4
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
5
,9

5
4

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
8
,6

7
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
o
u
rt

/C
o
d
e
 

S
a
la

ri
e
s
/B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 (
.5

0
 C

o
d
e
 F

T
E

 +
 .
2
9
 F

T
E

)
5
5
,5

8
4

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
9
,0

9
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
0
,8

9
4

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

M
a
te

ri
a
l/
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
1
,2

1
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
2
,7

7
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
0
,8

9
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
O

u
tl
a
y

1
,8

6
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,4

4
4

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(1
,4

9
0
)

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
1
3
,2

7
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
0
4
,8

9
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
0
3
,9

2
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

E
x
p
e
n
s
e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 B

F
B

 o
r 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 G
F

(6
0
,7

3
4
)

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,5

7
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(6
6
,3

3
2
)

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
h
e
ri
ff

s
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
%

 o
f 

L
e
v
y
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e

5
9
%

6
3
%

7
1
%

Ex
pe

ns
es

R
ev

en
ue

Lo
ca

l O
pt

io
n 

Ta
x 

Le
vy

 F
un

d 
C

ity
 o

f D
ay

to
n,

 O
re

go
n

As
 o

f 0
3/

11
/2

1

15



Sc
en

ar
io

s 
B

as
ed

 o
n 

20
20

-2
1 

Ta
xa

bl
e 

Pr
op

er
ty

 V
al

ue
 o

f $
14

0,
07

5,
19

2

A
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 p
e

r 
$

1
,0

0
0

 R
P

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.1
5

$
0

.4
0

$
0

.4
5

$
0

.5
0

$
0

.6
5

$
1

.1
5

$
1

.4
0

$
1

.4
5

$
1

.6
5

$
1

.7
5

L
o

c
a

l 
O

p
ti
o

n
 L

e
v
y
 

$1
.8

5/
$1

00
0

$2
.0

0/
$1

00
0

$2
.2

5/
$1

00
0

$2
.3

0/
$1

00
0

$2
.3

5/
$1

00
0

$2
.5

0/
$1

00
0

$3
.0

0/
$1

00
0

$3
.2

5/
$1

00
0

$3
.3

0/
$1

00
0

$3
.5

0/
$1

00
0

$3
.6

0/
$1

00
0

T
a

x
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
2

5
9

,1
3

9
$

  
  

  
2

8
0

,1
5

0
$

  
  

  
3

1
5

,1
6

9
$

  
  

  
3

2
2

,1
7

3
$

  
  

  
3

2
9

,1
7

7
$

  
  

  
3

5
0

,1
8

8
$

  
  

  
4

2
0

,2
2

6
$

  
  

  
4

5
5

,2
4

4
$

  
  

  
4

6
2

,2
4

8
$

  
  

  
4

9
0

,2
6

3
$

  
  

  
5

0
4

,2
7

1
$

  
  

  

O
th

e
r 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 G

e
n

e
ra

te
d

2
7

4
,1

3
9

$
  

  
  

2
9

5
,1

5
0

$
  

  
  

3
3

0
,1

6
9

$
  

  
  

3
3

7
,1

7
3

$
  

  
  

3
4

4
,1

7
7

$
  

  
  

3
6

5
,1

8
8

$
  

  
  

4
3

5
,2

2
6

$
  

  
  

4
7

0
,2

4
4

$
  

  
  

4
7

7
,2

4
8

$
  

  
  

5
0

5
,2

6
3

$
  

  
  

5
1

9
,2

7
1

$
  

  
  

1.
75

 D
ep

ut
y

1.
5 

D
ep

ut
y

1 
D

ep
ut

y
2 

D
ep

ut
y

.2
5 

SR
O

 
.5

0 
SR

O

S
h

e
ri

ff
s
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t

1
8

1
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

3
6

0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

3
1

5
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

2
7

0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

9
1

1
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
3

4
,6

0
8

$
  

  
  

  
3

4
,6

0
8

$
  

  
  

  
3

4
,6

0
8

$
  

  
  

  
3

4
,6

0
8

$
  

  
  

  

L
e

g
a

l 
F

e
e

s
2

0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
2

0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
2

0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
2

0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  

S
a

la
ri

e
s
/B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 (
.7

9
 F

T
E

)
6

6
,9

8
3

$
  

  
  

  
6

6
,9

8
3

$
  

  
  

  
6

6
,9

8
3

$
  

  
  

  
6

6
,9

8
3

$
  

  
  

  

M
a

te
ri

a
l/
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
3

2
,4

4
0

$
  

  
  

  
3

2
,4

4
0

$
  

  
  

  
3

2
,4

4
0

$
  

  
  

  
3

2
,4

4
0

$
  

  
  

  

C
a

p
it
a

l 
O

u
tl
a

y
2

,0
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
2

,0
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
2

,0
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
2

,0
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  

T
o

ta
l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
3

3
7

,0
3

1
$

  
  

  
5

1
6

,0
3

1
$

  
  

  
4

7
1

,0
3

1
$

  
  

  
4

2
6

,0
3

1
$

  
  

  

F
T

E

.5
0

 C
o

d
e

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t

.2
9

 C
o

u
rt

/A
d

m
in

C
ity

 F
un

de
d

Lo
ca

l O
pt

io
n 

Ta
x 

Le
vy

 F
un

d 
C

ity
 o

f D
ay

to
n,

 O
re

go
n

Sc
en

ar
io

s 

21
-2

2 
Ex

pe
ns

es

16



YA
M

H
IL

L 
C

O
U

N
TY

 S
H

ER
IF

F'
S 

O
FF

IC
E 

20
21

-2
02

2 
D

EP
U

TY
 C

O
ST

IN
G

 

R
AN

G
E/

B
AS

E
H

EA
LT

H
AC

C
ID

U
N

EM
P

W
/C

Ti
m

e

ST
EP

SA
LA

R
Y

M
O

S.
AM

O
U

N
T

C
ER

T 
/L

O
N

G
TO

TA
L

IN
S

R
ET

IR
FI

C
A

M
ED

IC
AR

E
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
In

s
IN

S
IN

S
AS

SE
S.

Lo
ss

TO
TA

L
D

e
p
u
ty

1
2
/8

7
,7

7
1
.5

7
1
2

9
3
,2

5
9

1
0
,2

5
8

1
0
3
,5

1
7

2
0
,1

5
7

1
8
,8

1
7

5
,3

9
9

1
,2

6
3

5
2
1

2
,5

5
1

8
7

2
5

8
7

15
2,

42
4

D
e
p
u
ty

1
2
/4

6
,4

2
3
.4

1
1
2

7
7
,0

8
1

5
,0

1
0

8
2
,0

9
1

2
0
,1

5
7

1
8
,8

1
7

5
,3

9
9

1
,2

6
3

5
2
1

2
,5

5
1

8
7

2
5

8
7

13
0,

99
8

 

1
,3

7
4

1
6
,0

4
7

3
,7

6
5

1
,0

8
0

2
5
3

1
0
5

5
1
0

1
7

2
5

1
7

2
3
,1

9
3

1
7
,4

2
1

P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L
 C

O
S

T
S

2
8
3
,4

2
2
.4

5
 

(2
.0

 F
T

E
)

O
V

E
R

T
IM

E
 1

0
h
rs

/m
o
n
th

  
2
3
,1

9
3
.2

2

 N
E

W
 V

E
H

IC
L

E
 C

O
S

T
4
5
,0

0
0
.0

0

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 C
O

S
T

S
7
,5

2
4
.0

0

5
0
 m

ile
s
 @

.5
7
x
 2

6
4
 d

a
ys

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

U
N

IF
O

R
M

S
8
5
2
.0

0

F
T

E
 *

 $
7
1
/m

o
.)

TO
TA

L 
C

O
ST

 
$3

59
,9

91
.6

7
C

os
t p

er
 m

on
th

$2
9,

99
9.

31

P
:\
A

d
m

in
 S

h
a
re

\B
u
d
g
e
t\
B

u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
2
1
-2

0
2
2
\2

0
2
1
-2

0
2
2
 D

e
p
u
ty

 C
o
s
ti
n
g
s
 W

O
R

K
IN

G
 C

O
P

Y
D

a
yt

o
n
 (

2
) 

  
E

x
h
ib

it
:_

_
_
_
_

C
re

a
te

d
 o

n
 3

/4
/2

0
2

1

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



TABLE 4a - DETAIL OF TAXING DISTRICT LEVIES
                       Tax Year 2020-21
NOTE:  Where urban renewal increment value impacts the district, report any reduced rate levies on a separate table 4a.

County: YAMHILL

1 Taxing District Code 361480000
2 Taxing District Name DAYTON                                    
3 Counties in which District lies

 

"GAP" BONDS OR
PERMANENT LOCAL OPTION UR SPECIAL LEVY BONDS

4 Levy Approved Before or After 10/6/04
Inside M5 Limit Inside M5 Limit Inside M5 Limit Outside M5 Limit TOTAL

 Ad Valorem Tax Levies

5 Permanent Levy (if dollar amount) 0 0
6 Local Option Levy (if dollar amount)* 0 0
7 "GAP" Bond Levy 0 0
8 Urban Renewal Special Levy 0 0
9 Bond Levy* 0 0
10 TOTAL DOLLAR LEVY (add lines 5 thru 9) 0 0 0 0 0

Adjustments

11 Amount Raised in Other Counties 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
12 NET DOLLAR LEVY FOR TAX RATE (line 10 minus line 11) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Taxable Property Value (if an urban renewal plan is involved, report reduced rate levies separately)

13 Total Assessed Value 140,075,192
14     Add: Non-Profit Housing Value 0
15     Add:  Fish and Wildlife Value 0
16     Subtract: Urban Renewal Excess (amt. used only)** 0
17 VALUE TO COMPUTE THE TAX RATE 140,075,192

 
Tax Computations

18 Tax Rate (for dollar levies, line 12 divided by line 17)*** 0.0017057 0.0018500 0.0000000 0.0000000 0.0035557
19 Amount Tax Rate Will Raise (line 17 times line 18) 238,926.25 259,139.11 0.00 0.00 498,065.36
20 Truncation Loss (for dollar levies only)  (line 19 minus line 12) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
21 Total Timber Offset Amount (county district only) 0.00 0.00
22 Timber Tax Rate (line 21 divided by line 17) 0.0000000 0.0000000
23 Billing Rate (line 18 minus line 22) 0.0017057 0.0018500 0.0000000 0.0000000 0.0035557
24 Calculated Tax for Extension for District (line 23 times line 17) 238,926.25 259,139.11 0.00 0.00 498,065.36
24a Gain from UR Division of Tax Rate Truncation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
24b Gain or Loss from UR Division of Tax Across Counties 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
24c Net Tax for Extension (24 + 24a + 24b) 238,926.25 259,139.11 0.00 0.00 498,065.36
25 Actual Tax Extended for District 238,926.25 259,139.11 0.00 0.00 498,065.36
26 District's Gain or Loss from Individual Extension (25 - 24c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
27 District's Compression Loss (Enter as a negative number)**** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
28 DISTRICT TAXES IMPOSED (line 24c+line 26+line 27) 238,926.25 259,139.11 0.00 0.00 498,065.36

Additional Taxes/Penalties

29 Farmland (ORS 308A.703) 0.00 0.00
30 Forestland (ORS 308A.703) 0.00 0.00
31 Small Tract Forestland (STF) (ORS 308A.703) 0.00 0.00
32 Open Space (ORS 308.770) 0.00 0.00
33
34 Historic Property (ORS 358.525) 0.00 0.00
35 Other ________________________________________ 0.00 0.00
36 Late Filing Fee County Only (ORS 308.302) 0.00 0.00
37 Roll Corrections (ORS 311.206), 

incl. omitted property/other roll 
corrections, but excl. roll 
corrections under ORS 311.208.

0.00 0.00

38 TOTAL ADDITIONAL TAXES/PENALTIES (lines 29 thru 37) 0.00 0.00

39 TOTAL TO BE RECEIVED (line 28 plus line 38) 238,926.25 259,139.11 0.00 0.00 498,065.36

40 Percentage Schedule (ORS 311.390) [OPTIONAL, SEE INSTRUCTIONS] 0.3417014%

* If district has multiple Local Option or Bond levies,  please show each levy on a separate 4a page (see instructions about combining in some cases). 
** For urban renewal special levies, enter zero on this line:  excess value is not subtracted.
*** Line 12/Line 17 computation applies ONLY to dollar levies; if district has a rate levy, enter the tax rate certified.
**** Enter only the district or U.R. special levy compression loss.  Urban renewal division of tax compression loss is reported on table 4e. See instructions.

27



28



 Analytics
DaytonOR web

All Web Site Data Go to report 

Feb 1, 2021 - Feb 28, 2021Web Traffic Dashboard

Total Users

1,197
% of Total: 100.00% (1,197)

Users

Top Pageviews

Page Pageviews

763

593

142

120

98

92

92

85

82

78

by Browser

Browser Users

Chrome 459

Safari 247

Safari (in-app) 217

Android Runtime 142

Edge 53

Firefox 47

Internet Explorer 15

Samsung Internet 6

Android Webview 5

bitdiscovery 4

by Device Category

Device Category Users

mobile 657

desktop 511

tablet 31

by Operating System

Operating System Users

iOS 428

Windows 410

Android 251

Macintosh 83

Linux 14

Chrome OS 7

(not set) 4

 Users

… Feb 8 Feb 15 Feb 22

100100100

200200200

300300300

/design/Editor.aspx

/homepage

/page/public_works_utility_payments

/page/city_bids_RFPs

/page/admin_mayor_council

/page/homepage

/page/planning_home

/page/library_home

/design/Preview.aspx

/page/city_fire_district

© 2021 Google

All Users
100.00% Sessions

29

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#/dashboard/wdxQw9USQmicvFFcvmDC5g/a91677897w224577972p212859765/_u.date00=20210201&_u.date01=20210228


 Analytics
DaytonOR web

Mobile App Go to report 

Feb 1, 2021 - Feb 28, 2021Mobile Dashboard

Total Users

355
% of Total: 100.00% (355)

Users

by Device

Operating System Users

iOS 213

Android 142

Total Screen Views

Screen Name Screen Views

Home 1,552

Notifications 923

News 209

City Council 23

Agendas & Minutes 17

Parks 13

Our Staff 11

Who do I Contact? 10

Contact Us 8

Useful Links 6

 Users

… Feb 8 Feb 15 Feb 22

100100100

200200200

© 2021 Google

All Users
100.00% Sessions

30

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#/dashboard/mQoc-h8-Sxi95TGbaenvuA/a91677897w224577972p213053564/_u.date00=20210201&_u.date01=20210228


Annual Verified  

Statement of Economic Interest 

 

 

 

  

Oregon Government Ethics Commission 
3218 Pringle Rd SE, Ste 220 

Salem OR  97302-1680 
Phone: 503-378-5105 

www.oregon.gov/OGEC 

 

31



ANNUAL VERIFIED STATEMENT OF ECONOMIC INTEREST 
HANDOUT 
The Oregon Government Ethics Commission (Commission) has been informed that you are a public 

official who is required by ORS 244.050 to electronically file a Statement of Economic Interest (SEI).  

The governing body you serve has provided us with your name, position, and email address.  You 

will have 30 days from the date you receive a system-generated email from the Oregon Government 

Ethics Commission (Commission) to create a username, password and confirm your pre-filled 

personal profile information is correct and electronically submit to the Commission. 

 

During the filing period, failure to complete and electronically file by the final filing date may subject 

you to an automatic civil penalty of $10.00 for each of the first 14 days the SEI is late and $50.00 for 

each day thereafter, up to a maximum of $5,000 [ORS 244.350(4)(c)].  

 
Annual Verified Statement of Economic Interest Filing Instructions: 

 
• ORS 244.050 specifically identifies certain public officials who are required to electronically file 

the SEI.  Your position is one of those listed.  If you do not believe that you are required to 
file a SEI or if you have other questions, please call the Commission at (503) 378-5105 as 
soon as possible. 

• If you hold more than one position that is required to file, you will only electronically file one 
report. 

 
The most common errors officials make filing are:  

(a) Failing to list all sources of household income for question 2.  All sources of income 

exceeding 10% of the total annual household income must be listed.  (The question includes 
the public position you hold.)  Do not overlook the fact that a pension or social security benefit 

represents part of the household income.  Please refer to the definition of income on page 3.  

(b) Completing items 7 to 10 when not necessary.  Please carefully read the instructions in the 

box.  The questions need to be answered only if the conditions described in the instructions 

apply to your responses. 

 

• Please do not fail to respond to the email notification!  ORS 244.350(4)(c) prescribes 
assessment of a penalty of $10 for each of the first 14 days the SEI is late and $50 for each day 
thereafter that passes after the filing deadline date, up to a maximum of $5000.  

• You are required to electronically file no later than April 15.  Please contact the Commission 
at 503-378-5105 if you have questions. 

  

32



STATUTORY REFERENCES 

Item 4-A, ORS 244.020(7)(b)(F) – Reasonable expenses paid by any unit of the federal government, 

a state or local government, a Native American tribe that is recognized by federal law or formally 

acknowledged by a state, a membership organization to which a public body as defined in ORS 

174.109 pays membership dues or a not-for-profit corporation that is tax exempt under section 

501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, for attendance at a convention, fact-finding mission or 

trip, conference or other meeting if the public official is scheduled to deliver a speech, make a 

presentation, participate on a panel or represent state government as defined in ORS 174.111, 

a local government as defined in ORS 174.116 or a special government body as defined in ORS 

174.117. 

Item 4-B, ORS 244.020(7)(b)(H) – Reasonable food, travel or lodging expenses provided to a public 

official, a relative of the public official accompanying the public official, a member of the 

household of the public official accompanying the public official or a staff member of the public 

official accompanying the public official, when the public official is representing state 

government as defined in ORS 174.111, a local government as defined in ORS 174.116 or a 

special government body as defined in ORS 174.117. 

 (i) On an officially-sanctioned trade promotion or fact-finding mission; or 

 (ii) In officially designated negotiations, or economic development activities, where receipt of 

the expenses is approved in advance. 

 

DEFINITIONS 

"Business" means any corporation, partnership, proprietorship, firm, enterprise, franchise, 

association, organization, self-employed individual and any other legal entity operated for 

economic gain.  This does not include income-producing not-for-profit corporations that are tax-

exempt under section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code with which a public official or relative 

of a public official is associated in a non-compensated capacity. [ORS 244.020(2)] 

"Income" means income of any nature derived from any source, including but not limited to any 

salary, wage, advance, payment, dividend, interest, rent, honorarium, return of capital, 

forgiveness of indebtedness, retirement income, real estate transactions, inheritance income, 

or anything of economic value received as income including income from government sources 

(i.e., social security, your public salary, etc.).  [ORS 244.020(9)] 

“Honorarium” means a payment or something of economic value given to a public official in 

exchange for services upon which custom or propriety prevents the setting of a price.  Services 

include, but are not limited to, speeches or other services rendered in connection with an event. 

[ORS 244.020(8)] 

"Person" means, for purposes of this form, (a) the public official required to file a Statement of 

Economic Interest and (b) an individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, and any other 

similar organization or association. 

"Member of Household" means any person who resides with the public official.  [ORS 244.020(11)] 

Questions requiring disclosure: 

33



1. BUSINESS OFFICE OR DIRECTORSHIP; BUSINESS NAME: 

A. If you or a member of your household were an officer or director of a business (see definition 
of "business") during 2018, please indicate that information below.  (These would be personal 
business ventures, not the public position you hold.  Items A and B may be the same and Item B may 
be subsidiary of parent company listed in Item A for example.) [ORS 244.060(1) & (2)] 

You will list the Business Name, the Title of Office, Business Address, Held by Whom, 

and a Description of the Business. 

B. List the names under which you or members of your household did business (see definition 
of "business") during 2018: 

You will list the Business Name, the Title of Office, Business Address, Held by Whom, 

and a Description of the Business. 

2. SOURCES OF INCOME:  Identify the sources of income (See definition of "income") received by 

you or a member of your household, who is 18 years of age or over, during the 2018 calendar 

year that produced 10% or more of the total annual household income. (Your business would be 
a source, not the individual clients of your business.) [ORS 244.060(3)] 

You will list the Name of the Source, Address of the Source, and a Description of the 
Source. For example:  Salem Hospital, 1234 Oak St., Salem OR; Husband’s salary. 

3. REAL PROPERTY:  List all real property (residential, commercial, vacant land, etc.) in which, during 

2018, you or a member of your household had any ownership interest, any option to purchase 

or sell, or any other right of any kind in real property, including a land sales contract, located 
within the geographical boundaries of the public entity you serve.  (Boundaries for legislators, 
or filers from state agencies, boards, commissions or institutions would be the state borders.  Boundaries 
for local filers would be the limits of the city, county or district you serve.) [ORS 244.060(4)(a)]  Do not 
list your principal residence. [ORS 244.060(4)(b)] 

You will list a Description of the real property and Address. 

4. OFFICE RELATED EVENTS: 

 A.  List the amount of any expenses with an aggregate value exceeding $50 provided to you 

during 2018 when participating in a convention, mission, trip, or other meeting as described in 

ORS 244.020(7)(b)(F), (see reference), which is an exception to gift restrictions.  (Do not list 
expenses that were paid by the public body you represented.) [ORS 244.060(5)] 

 You will list the Date, Organization Name, Address, Nature of Event and Amount. 

Any organization, unit of government, tribe or corporation that provides a public official with 

expenses with an aggregate value exceeding $50 for an event described in ORS 

244.020(7)(b)(F) shall notify the public official in writing of the amount of the expense.  The 

organization, unit, tribe or corporation shall provide the notice to the public official within 10 days 

after the date the expenses are incurred. This notification may be uploaded when filing.   

  

34



4. OFFICE RELATED EVENTS continued: 

 B.  List the amount of any expenses with an aggregate value exceeding $50 provided to you 

during 2018 when participating in a mission, negotiations, or economic development activities 

described in ORS 244.020(7)(b)(H), (See reference), which is an exception to the gift restrictions.  

(These events are those that were officially sanctioned or designated by your public body.  Do not list 
expenses that were paid by the public body you represented.) [ORS 244.060(6)] 

 You will list the Date, Organization Name, Address, Nature of Event and Amount. 

5. HONORARIA:  List all honoraria (see definition) allowed in ORS 244.042, with a value exceeding 

$15, received by you or a member of your household during 2018. [ORS 244.060(7)] 
 

You will need the Date, Organization Name, Nature of Event and Amount. 
 

Under ORS 244.100(2) any person that provides a public official or candidate, or a member of 

the household of the public official or candidate, with an honorarium or other item allowed under 

ORS 244.042 with a value exceeding $15 shall notify the public official or candidate in writing of 

the value of the honorarium or other item.  The person shall provide the notice to the public 

official or candidate within 10 days after the date of the event for which the honorarium or other 

item was received. 

6. SHARED BUSINESS WITH LOBBYIST:  List the name of any compensated lobbyist who was 

associated with a business with which you or a member of your household was also associated 

during 2018. (Example:  The public official or household member is an employee or owner of a private 
company that also employs a lobbyist.  Owning stock in a publicly traded company in which the lobbyist 
also owns stock is not a relationship that requires disclosure.) [ORS 244.090(1)] 
 
You will need the Name of the Lobbyist, the Name of the Business and the Type of the 
Business. 

PLEASE NOTE – Do NOT answer items 7, 8, 9, and 10 unless the source of the interest is 
derived from an individual or business that has a legislative or administrative interest or that 
has been doing business, does business or could reasonably be expected to do business 
with the governmental agency of which you hold an official position or over which you 
exercise any authority. 

 "Legislative or administrative interest" means an economic interest, distinct from that of the 
general public in any matter subject to the decision or vote of the public official acting in the 
public official’s capacity as a public official.  

 

7. INCOME OF $1,000 OR MORE:  Respond only if you or a member of your household received 

a source of income exceeding an aggregate amount of $1,000 during 2018, and that income 

was derived from an individual or business that has been doing business, does business, or 

could reasonably be expected to do business with, or has a legislative or administrative interest 

in the governmental body you serve. [ORS 244.060(8)] 

You will need to report the Income Source, Address and Description. 

35



8. DEBT OF $1,000 OR MORE:  Respond only if you or a member of your household owed a debt 

of $1,000 or more to a person (see definition of "person") during 2018, and that debt involved an 

individual or business that did business with, or reasonably could be expected to do business 

with, or had a legislative or administrative interest in the public body you serve. (Note:  Do not list 
loans from state or federally regulated financial institutions (banks, etc.) or retail credit accounts and do 
not list the amounts owed.) [ORS 244.070(1)] 

You will need to list the Name of Creditor, Date of Loan, and Interest Rate of Loan. 

9. BUSINESS INVESTMENT OF MORE THAN $1,000:  Respond only if you or a member of your 

household had a personal, beneficial interest or investment in a business (see definition of 
"business") of more than $1,000 during 2018, if the investment involved an individual or business 

that did business with or reasonably could be expected to do business with, or had a legislative 

or administrative interest in the public body you serve.  (Note:  Do not list the amount of the 
investment.  Do not list individual items in a mutual fund or blind trust, or a time or demand deposit in a 
financial institution, shares in a credit union, or the cash surrender value of life insurance.) [ORS 
244.070(2)] 

You will list the Business Name, Address, and a Description of the Business. 

10. SERVICE FEE OF MORE THAN $1,000:  Respond only if you (not your business) received a 

fee of more than $1,000 in 2018 from a person (see definition of “person”) for whom you performed 

a service, if the service involved an individual or business that did business with, or reasonably 

could be expected to do business with, or had a legislative or administrative interest in the public 

body you serve.  (Do not list fees if you are prohibited from doing so by law or a professional code of 
ethics.) [ORS 244.070(3)] 

 

11. VERIFICATION:      Under penalties for false swearing/false affirmation, I declare that the 

information submitted in this electronic filing is, to the best of my knowledge 

and belief, true, accurate, and complete. 

 

 

As with other provisions in Oregon Government Ethics law, it is each public official’s personal 

responsibility to ensure they comply with the requirements to complete and electronically submit the 

SEI by April 15. 

If you have any questions regarding the Annual Verified Statement of Economic Interest or the 

Oregon Government Ethics Commission, please call or email the Commission staff. 

 

Oregon Government Ethics Commission 
3218 Pringle Rd SE, STE 220 
Salem, OR  97302-1680 
Phone: 503-378-5105 
Website: www.oregon.gov/OGEC  
Email:  ogec.mail@oregon.gov 
 

36

http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC
mailto:ogec.mail@oregon.gov


37



38



W
el

l 
1

W
el

l 
2

W
el

l 
3

W
el

l 
4

W
el

l 
5

T
o
ta

l
T

re
at

m
en

t 

P
la

n
t 

In
fl

u
en

t
B

ac
k
w

as
h

L
af

ay
et

te
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

D
ay

to
n
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

L
af

ay
et

te
 

P
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

D
ay

to
n
 

P
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

L
 +

 D
 

D
if

f 
B

et
w

ee
n
 

W
el

l 
T

o
ta

l 
an

d
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

Ja
n

1
,0

7
2

,0
0

0
6

9
8

,0
0

0
8

0
6

,0
0

0
9

4
6

,0
0

0
9
1
1
,0

0
0

4
,4

3
3
,0

0
0

4
,8

5
7
,0

0
0

1
8
0
,0

0
0

2
,0

9
0
,0

0
0

2
,7

4
0
,0

0
0

4
3
%

5
7
%

4
,8

3
0
,0

0
0

-3
9
7
,0

0
0

F
eb

1
,3

2
6

,0
0

0
7

5
8

,0
0

0
1

,2
4

2
,0

0
0

1
,3

3
6

,0
0

0
1
,3

9
4
,0

0
0

6
,0

5
6
,0

0
0

6
,4

1
3
,0

0
0

2
1
0
,0

0
0

2
,6

8
2
,0

0
0

2
,3

2
7
,0

0
0

5
4
%

4
6
%

5
,0

0
9
,0

0
0

1
,0

4
7
,0

0
0

M
ar

0
#
D

IV
/0

!
#
D

IV
/0

!
0

0

A
p

r
0

#
D

IV
/0

!
#
D

IV
/0

!
0

0

M
ay

0
#
D

IV
/0

!
#
D

IV
/0

!
0

0

Ju
n

0
#
D

IV
/0

!
#
D

IV
/0

!
0

0

Ju
l

0
#
D

IV
/0

!
#
D

IV
/0

!
0

0

A
u

g
0

#
D

IV
/0

!
#
D

IV
/0

!
0

0

S
ep

0
#
D

IV
/0

!
#
D

IV
/0

!
0

0

O
ct

0
#
D

IV
/0

!
#
D

IV
/0

!
0

0

N
o

v
0

#
D

IV
/0

!
#
D

IV
/0

!
0

0

D
ec

T
o

ta
l

2
,3

9
8

,0
0

0
1

,4
5

6
,0

0
0

2
,0

4
8

,0
0

0
2

,2
8

2
,0

0
0

2
,3

0
5
,0

0
0

1
0
,4

8
9
,0

0
0

1
1
,2

7
0
,0

0
0

3
9
0
,0

0
0

4
,7

7
2
,0

0
0

5
,0

6
7
,0

0
0

4
9
%

5
1
%

9
,8

3
9
,0

0
0

6
5
0
,0

0
0

W
el

l 
1

W
el

l 
2

W
el

l 
3

W
el

l 
4

W
el

l 
5

T
o
ta

l
T

re
at

m
en

t 

P
la

n
t 

In
fl

u
en

t
B

ac
k
w

as
h

L
af

ay
et

te
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

D
ay

to
n
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

L
af

ay
et

te
 

P
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

D
ay

to
n
 

P
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

L
 +

 D
 

D
if

f 
B

et
w

ee
n
 

W
el

l 
T

o
ta

l 
an

d
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

Ja
n

2
,2

1
2

,0
0

0
1

,3
5

2
,0

0
0

2
,5

0
4

,0
0

0
2

,5
7

1
,0

0
0

1
,7

8
1
,0

0
0

1
0
,4

2
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,7

7
7
,0

0
0

3
0
7
,0

0
0

6
,4

8
0
,0

0
0

3
,3

9
0
,0

0
0

6
6
%

3
4
%

9
,8

7
0
,0

0
0

5
5
0
,0

0
0

F
eb

2
,6

0
5

,0
0

0
1

,3
9

2
,0

0
0

2
,7

2
7

,0
0

0
2

,7
2

7
,0

0
0

1
,7

9
5
,0

0
0

1
1
,2

4
6
,0

0
0

1
1
,5

0
3
,0

0
0

3
2
1
,0

0
0

6
,9

6
8
,0

0
0

3
,6

0
6
,0

0
0

6
6
%

3
4
%

1
0
,5

7
4
,0

0
0

6
7
2
,0

0
0

M
ar

1
,8

6
9

,0
0

0
1

,3
4

6
,0

0
0

2
,8

5
6

,0
0

0
2

,8
5

8
,0

0
0

2
,7

3
6
,0

0
0

1
1
,6

6
5
,0

0
0

1
1
,0

8
7
,0

0
0

3
2
4
,0

0
0

7
,2

9
0
,0

0
0

3
,9

2
2
,0

0
0

6
5
%

3
5
%

1
1
,2

1
2
,0

0
0

4
5
3
,0

0
0

A
p

r
2

,1
0

5
,0

0
0

1
,5

4
2

,0
0

0
4

,1
9

7
,0

0
0

2
,2

2
9

,0
0

0
2
,4

2
4
,0

0
0

1
2
,4

9
7
,0

0
0

1
3
,7

0
5
,0

0
0

4
0
4
,0

0
0

7
,8

5
6
,0

0
0

3
,8

2
6
,0

0
0

6
7
%

3
3
%

1
1
,6

8
2
,0

0
0

8
1
5
,0

0
0

M
ay

2
,1

2
5

,0
0

0
1

,2
5

1
,0

0
0

3
,7

0
2

,0
0

0
2

,1
9

6
,0

0
0

2
,1

9
6
,0

0
0

1
1
,4

7
0
,0

0
0

1
3
,8

6
6
,0

0
0

4
2
4
,0

0
0

8
,9

1
9
,0

0
0

2
,6

7
8
,0

0
0

7
7
%

2
3
%

1
1
,5

9
7
,0

0
0

-1
2
7
,0

0
0

Ju
n

1
,4

2
7

,0
0

0
1

,4
1

3
,0

0
0

1
,4

2
6

,0
0

0
1

,4
2

7
,0

0
0

1
,4

6
5
,0

0
0

7
,1

5
8
,0

0
0

9
,7

8
2
,0

0
0

3
1
5
,0

0
0

5
,0

9
3
,0

0
0

3
,8

5
9
,0

0
0

5
7
%

4
3
%

8
,9

5
2
,0

0
0

-1
,7

9
4
,0

0
0

Ju
l

1
,7

5
4

,0
0

0
1

,5
9

3
,0

0
0

1
,7

7
1

,0
0

0
1

,7
7

3
,0

0
0

1
,8

2
3
,0

0
0

8
,7

1
4
,0

0
0

1
1
,7

2
0
,0

0
0

3
4
4
,0

0
0

5
,0

2
7
,0

0
0

5
,1

5
5
,0

0
0

4
9
%

5
1
%

1
0
,1

8
2
,0

0
0

-1
,4

6
8
,0

0
0

A
u

g
1

,6
3

8
,0

0
0

8
9

2
,0

0
0

1
,9

0
2

,0
0

0
1

,9
0

2
,0

0
0

1
,9

4
5
,0

0
0

8
,2

7
9
,0

0
0

1
1
,1

0
6
,0

0
0

2
8
3
,0

0
0

4
,8

3
5
,0

0
0

5
,5

0
1
,0

0
0

4
7
%

5
3
%

1
0
,3

3
6
,0

0
0

-2
,0

5
7
,0

0
0

S
ep

1
,1

0
9

,0
0

0
1

,1
7

7
,0

0
0

1
,3

5
9

,0
0

0
1

,3
5

9
,0

0
0

1
,3

8
7
,0

0
0

6
,3

9
1
,0

0
0

7
,4

2
1
,0

0
0

2
5
7
,0

0
0

3
,3

8
3
,0

0
0

4
,0

8
9
,0

0
0

4
5
%

5
5
%

7
,4

7
2
,0

0
0

-1
,0

8
1
,0

0
0

O
ct

9
3

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

9
6

,0
0

0
1

,2
8

7
,0

0
0

1
,2

8
9

,0
0

0
1
,3

1
4
,0

0
0

5
,9

1
7
,0

0
0

6
,8

0
9
,0

0
0

2
1
1
,0

0
0

3
,7

6
4
,0

0
0

2
,8

2
5
,0

0
0

5
7
%

4
3
%

6
,5

8
9
,0

0
0

-6
7
2
,0

0
0

N
o

v
1

,2
9

3
,0

0
0

1
,6

6
1

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

1
,0

0
0

1
,7

0
5

,0
0

0
1
,7

3
3
,0

0
0

8
,3

9
3
,0

0
0

9
,0

7
7
,0

0
0

3
0
4
,0

0
0

5
,9

4
3
,0

0
0

3
,0

7
1
,0

0
0

6
6
%

3
4
%

9
,0

1
4
,0

0
0

-6
2
1
,0

0
0

D
ec

1
,1

2
7

,0
0

0
1

,4
6

2
,0

0
0

1
,7

1
1

,0
0

0
1

,4
3

7
,0

0
0

1
,4

3
3
,0

0
0

7
,1

7
0
,0

0
0

7
,1

8
4
,0

0
0

2
5
1
,0

0
0

3
,2

5
8
,0

0
0

3
,3

4
9
,0

0
0

4
9
%

5
1
%

6
,6

0
7
,0

0
0

5
6
3
,0

0
0

T
o

ta
l

2
0

,1
9

5
,0

0
0

1
6

,1
7

7
,0

0
0

2
7

,4
4

3
,0

0
0

2
3

,4
7

3
,0

0
0

2
2
,0

3
2
,0

0
0

1
0
9
,3

2
0
,0

0
0

1
2
4
,0

3
7
,0

0
0

3
,7

4
5
,0

0
0

6
8
,8

1
6
,0

0
0

4
5
,2

7
1
,0

0
0

6
0
%

4
0
%

1
1
4
,0

8
7
,0

0
0

-4
,7

6
7
,0

0
0

W
el

l 
1

W
el

l 
2

W
el

l 
3

W
el

l 
4

W
el

l 
5

T
o
ta

l
T

re
at

m
en

t 

P
la

n
t 

In
fl

u
en

t
B

ac
k
w

as
h

L
af

ay
et

te
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

D
ay

to
n
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

L
af

ay
et

te
 

P
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

D
ay

to
n
 

P
er

ce
n
ta

g
e

L
 +

 D
 

D
if

f 
B

et
w

ee
n
 

W
el

l 
T

o
ta

l 
an

d
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

Ja
n

1
,8

9
4

,0
0

0
1

,8
2

7
,0

0
0

1
,8

9
4

,0
0

0
2

,1
4

4
,0

0
0

2
,0

3
7
,0

0
0

9
,7

9
6
,0

0
0

1
1
,1

4
8
,0

0
0

4
1
0
,0

0
0

7
,7

2
4
,0

0
0

2
,5

9
9
,0

0
0

7
5
%

2
5
%

1
0
,3

2
3
,0

0
0

-5
2
7
,0

0
0

F
eb

1
,8

3
7

,0
0

0
1

,8
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,5

6
1

,0
0

0
2

,0
3

0
,0

0
0

2
,3

4
2
,0

0
0

9
,5

9
3
,0

0
0

1
0
,5

9
4
,0

0
0

3
5
5
,0

0
0

8
,1

3
7
,0

0
0

1
,5

3
3
,0

0
0

8
4
%

1
6
%

9
,6

7
0
,0

0
0

-7
7
,0

0
0

M
ar

1
,4

6
2

,0
0

0
1

,6
6

2
,0

0
0

1
,7

1
8

,0
0

0
2

,5
7

9
,0

0
0

2
,5

6
6
,0

0
0

9
,9

8
7
,0

0
0

1
1
,6

5
9
,0

0
0

2
5
5
,0

0
0

8
,5

2
7
,0

0
0

2
,0

8
1
,0

0
0

8
0
%

2
0
%

1
0
,6

0
8
,0

0
0

-6
2
1
,0

0
0

A
p

r
1

,9
2

8
,0

0
0

1
,3

2
7

,0
0

0
1

,4
2

4
,0

0
0

1
,9

2
6

,0
0

0
1
,9

6
6
,0

0
0

8
,5

7
1
,0

0
0

1
0
,4

8
6
,0

0
0

2
4
8
,0

0
0

7
,4

4
3
,0

0
0

1
,8

9
2
,0

0
0

8
0
%

2
0
%

9
,3

3
5
,0

0
0

-7
6
4
,0

0
0

M
ay

2
,8

6
5

,0
0

0
1

,7
5

1
,0

0
0

1
,9

2
8

,0
0

0
2

,8
9

6
,0

0
0

2
,5

0
2
,0

0
0

1
1
,9

4
2
,0

0
0

1
3
,3

5
2
,0

0
0

3
0
7
,0

0
0

9
,1

1
8
,0

0
0

2
,2

9
9
,0

0
0

8
0
%

2
0
%

1
1
,4

1
7
,0

0
0

5
2
5
,0

0
0

Ju
n

2
,5

2
6

,0
0

0
1

,3
5

0
,0

0
0

1
,5

4
7

,0
0

0
2

,7
9

7
,0

0
0

1
,4

2
3
,0

0
0

9
,6

4
3
,0

0
0

1
0
,7

9
6
,0

0
0

2
4
0
,0

0
0

5
,6

1
5
,0

0
0

3
,2

5
6
,0

0
0

6
3
%

3
7
%

8
,8

7
1
,0

0
0

7
7
2
,0

0
0

Ju
l

1
,8

8
9

,0
0

0
8

9
1

,0
0

0
1

,5
8

3
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
4

,0
0

0
2
,4

2
5
,0

0
0

9
,7

9
2
,0

0
0

1
0
,7

9
4
,0

0
0

2
4
5
,0

0
0

5
,0

9
7
,0

0
0

4
,1

1
6
,0

0
0

5
5
%

4
5
%

9
,2

1
3
,0

0
0

5
7
9
,0

0
0

A
u

g
2

,0
4

5
,0

0
0

1
,8

1
7

,0
0

0
1

,6
3

0
,0

0
0

3
,2

8
8

,0
0

0
2
,9

2
6
,0

0
0

1
1
,7

0
6
,0

0
0

1
2
,4

5
2
,0

0
0

3
1
8
,0

0
0

6
,9

0
2
,0

0
0

4
,5

8
2
,0

0
0

6
0
%

4
0
%

1
1
,4

8
4
,0

0
0

2
2
2
,0

0
0

S
ep

1
,7

8
6

,0
0

0
8

2
7

,0
0

0
1

,4
4

6
,0

0
0

1
,5

6
0

,0
0

0
1
,5

0
6
,0

0
0

7
,1

2
5
,0

0
0

7
,2

2
7
,0

0
0

2
1
3
,0

0
0

4
,3

7
8
,0

0
0

3
,2

4
9
,0

0
0

5
7
%

4
3
%

7
,6

2
7
,0

0
0

-5
0
2
,0

0
0

O
ct

1
,4

7
1

,0
0

0
8

2
9

,0
0

0
1

,5
4

0
,0

0
0

1
,5

8
2

,0
0

0
1
,7

0
1
,0

0
0

7
,1

2
3
,0

0
0

7
,7

5
2
,0

0
0

2
0
3
,0

0
0

4
,0

8
1
,0

0
0

2
,8

3
2
,0

0
0

5
9
%

4
1
%

6
,9

1
3
,0

0
0

2
1
0
,0

0
0

N
o

v
2

,2
3

2
,0

0
0

1
,2

1
9

,0
0

0
2

,3
1

5
,0

0
0

2
,1

6
6

,0
0

0
2
,2

3
9
,0

0
0

1
0
,1

7
1
,0

0
0

1
0
,9

6
1
,0

0
0

2
8
5
,0

0
0

7
,4

1
0
,0

0
0

2
,5

9
9
,0

0
0

7
4
%

2
6
%

1
0
,0

0
9
,0

0
0

1
6
2
,0

0
0

D
ec

2
,2

4
9

,0
0

0
1

,2
5

7
,0

0
0

2
,2

4
7

,0
0

0
2

,4
1

1
,0

0
0

2
,2

8
2
,0

0
0

1
0
,4

4
6
,0

0
0

1
1
,6

1
1
,0

0
0

2
5
7
,0

0
0

7
,0

4
4
,0

0
0

3
,4

6
3
,0

0
0

6
7
%

3
3
%

1
0
,5

0
7
,0

0
0

-6
1
,0

0
0

T
o

ta
l

2
4

,1
8

4
,0

0
0

1
6

,5
8

0
,0

0
0

2
0

,8
3

3
,0

0
0

2
8

,3
8

3
,0

0
0

2
5
,9

1
5
,0

0
0

1
1
5
,8

9
5
,0

0
0

1
2
8
,8

3
2
,0

0
0

3
,3

3
6
,0

0
0

8
1
,4

7
6
,0

0
0

3
4
,5

0
1
,0

0
0

7
0
%

3
0
%

1
1
5
,9

7
7
,0

0
0

-8
2
,0

0
0

W
el

lf
ie

ld
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
  
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 2
0
2
1

W
el

lf
ie

ld
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
  
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 2
0
2
0

W
el

lf
ie

ld
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
  
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 2
0
1
9

39



40



    City     UCR Description 2/2/2020 to 
2/29/2020

2/1/2021 to 
2/28/2021

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

DAYTON

Part 1

Aggravated Assault                 0 1 1 3

Arson                              0 0 1

Burglary-Business                  0 0 5

Burglary-Non-Residence             0 0 1 5

Burglary-Residence                 0 0 2

Larceny                            0 0 4 44

Motor Vehicle Theft-Auto           0 0 6

Rape                               0 0 1

Robbery                            0 0 1

Part 1 Total 1 6 68

Part 2

All Other                          1 0 2 12

Animal Problems                    0 0 1

Disorderly Conduct                 0 0 5

Drug Laws                          1 0 1 12

DUII                               1 0 12

Forgery                            0 0 3

Fraud                              0 0 4

Liquor Laws                        1 0 1

Runaway                            0 0 4

Sex Offenses                       0 0 1

Simple Assault                     1 3 200.00 % 3 22

Stolen Property                    0 0 5

Tresspass/Prowler                  1 0 4 17

Vandalism                          0 1 1 18

Weapons                            0 0 5

Part 2 Total 6 4 -33.33 % 11 122

Total For DAYTON 22 14 -36.36 % 35 375

Report run date: 3/1/2021

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for DAYTON

From 2/1/2021 to 2/28/2021

41



    City     UCR Description 2/2/2020 to 
2/29/2020

2/1/2021 to 
2/28/2021

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

DAYTON

Part 3

All Other                          3 3 7 57

Non-Reportable Offenses            13 6 -53.85 % 11 128

Part 3 Total 16 9 -43.75 % 18 185

Total For DAYTON 22 14 -36.36 % 35 375

Report run date: 3/1/2021

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for DAYTON

From 2/1/2021 to 2/28/2021

42


	03-01-21  Regular Session Minutes
	Staff Report - Ferry Street Newsletter
	1-Prioritized List of Pedestrian Improvements for Funding Eligibility
	Side walk Map
	1-Renew Replace public safety levy discussion
	2-2018-2021 Local Option Tax Actual Rev and Exp
	Sheet1

	3-LOT Scenarios
	Sheet1

	4-2021-2022 Deputy Costings - DAYTON
	5-R 2018-19-01
	6-2001 Dayton Levy information
	7-2020-2021 SAL 4a Government
	Analytics All Web Site Data Web Traffic Dashboard 20210201-20210228
	Analytics Mobile App Mobile Dashboard 20210201-20210228
	Annual Verified Statment of Economic Interest 2019
	ANNUAL VERIFIED STATEMENT OF ECONOMIC INTEREST HANDOUT
	Annual Verified Statement of Economic Interest Filing Instructions:
	STATUTORY REFERENCES
	DEFINITIONS
	"Member of Household" means any person who resides with the public official.  [ORS 244.020(11)]

	Feb 2021 Water Consumption Report
	Wellfield Water Report Feb 2021
	Feb Crime Stats by City
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



